
 

 

           
 
Notice is hereby given of a Regular Meeting of the Nacogdoches City Council to be held 
September 3, 2013, beginning at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 202 E. Pilar Street, 
Nacogdoches, Texas, for the purpose of considering the following agenda items.  All agenda 
items are subject to action.   

 
PLEASE LIMIT PRESENTATIONS TO THREE MINUTES 

(UNLESS PRIOR APPROVAL IS OBTAINED) 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Invocation. 

 
3. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS:   
 
4. Items to be removed from Consent Agenda. 
  
5. CONSENT AGENDA: Items included under the Consent Agenda require little or no deliberation 

by the Council.  Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the City Manager or his designee 
to proceed with conclusion of each in accordance with staff recommendations as reflected in 
the minutes of this meeting. 
 
A. Consider approval of minutes from regular session of August 20, 2013. (City Secretary) 

 
REGULAR AGENDA: 

 
6. Approve Nacogdoches Convention and Visitors Bureau budget for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 and 

consider contract extension for tourism services.  (CVB Director) 
 

7. Consider award of professional engineering contract to KSA Engineers, Inc. for the design of Utility 
Relocation along South Street (US Hwy 59 South) from Loop 224 to Old Lufkin Road intersection.  
(City Engineer) 

 
8. Receive annual presentation of Nacogdoches Main Street Program.  (Main Street Manager) 

 
9. Consider adoption of City budget for fiscal year 2013-2014.  (City Manager) 
 
10. Consider ordinance ratifying the 2014 tax rate.  (City Manager) 

 
11. Adjourn. 
 
 

This agenda is posted as required under G. C. Section 551.041.  For more information or a copy of the Open Meetings Act, please 
contact the Attorney General of Texas at 1-800-252-8011; the City Secretary at 936/559-2504 or visit the City of Nacogdoches web 
site at www.ci.nacogdoches.tx.us. 
 
The Nacogdoches City Council Chambers are wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available.  Requests for 
accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting.  Please contact the City Secretary’s office at 
(936) 559-2504 or FAX (936) 559-2912 for further information. 

 
 
 
 
 

www.ci.nacogdoches.tx.us


 Agenda Page 2 
September 3, 2013 

Nacogdoches City Council 

 

 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I certify that the above notice of meeting was posted in the directory outside of City Hall, 202 E. Pilar Street, Nacogdoches, Texas 
on Friday, August 30, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Lila Fuller, City Secretary 

 
I certify that the attached notice and agenda of items to be considered by the City Council was removed by me from the directory 
outside of City Hall on the _____day of September 2013. 
 
Name: ____________________________ Title: _______________________________ 



 
 

 

 

 

 

ITEM NO.   5-A 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: CONSENT AGENDA:  Consider approval of minutes from regular session of 

August 20, 2013. 

 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 3, 2013 

 

 

CITY CONTACT: Lila Fuller, City Secretary - 559-2504 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Minutes 



Nacogdoches City Council                                                                                                                        August 20, 2013 
Minutes – Regular Session  

 

 

 

 

MINUTES 
Regular Session 

Nacogdoches City Council 
August 20, 2013 – 5:30 p.m. 
City Council Room – City Hall 

202 E. Pilar Street 
 

 
Regular Session: 
 
Those Present: 
 

Mayor Roger Van Horn; Council members Shelley Brophy, David Norton, Roy Boldon 
and Mike Keller; City Manager Jim Jeffers, City Attorney Rob Atherton and City 
Secretary Lila Fuller. 
 
1. Call to Order. 
 
Mayor Van Horn at 5:30 p.m.  A quorum was established.   
 
2.  Invocation. 
 

Mayor Van Horn gave the invocation. 
 
3.  Presentations and Recognitions. 

 
None. 
 
4.  Items to be removed from the Consent Agenda. 

 

None. 
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA: Items included under the Consent Agenda require little or 
no deliberation by the Council.  Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the 
City Manager or his designee to proceed with conclusion of each in accordance 
with staff recommendations as reflected in the minutes of this meeting. 

 
A. Consider approval of minutes from regular session of August 6, 2013.  

 

Approved as submitted. 
 

Council member Brophy moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  The 
motion was seconded by Council member Norton and unanimously passed. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA: 
 
6. Receive Nacogdoches Convention and Visitors Bureau annual report and 

approve budget for Fiscal Year 2013-2014.  
 

Melissa Sanford, executive director of the Nacogdoches CVB presented their annual 
report and draft budget for FY 2013-14. 
 
In her report, she stated the CVB Board had recently completed a 3-year strategic plan 
to be implemented October 1.  She commented on some of the projects they had been 
working on, including the Community Services project and the Wayfinder Sign project.  
She stated they had added a Pinterest page this year and group travel was doing well, 
with the busiest time being during the Azalea Trail.  She stated they averaged 615 walk 
in visitors each month. 
 
Council members asked for clarification on some budget items.  Mrs. Sanford stated the 
budget would be finalized for presentation at the next City Council meeting. 
 
No action necessary. 
 
 
 

M
in

u
te

s 
u

n
o

ff
ic

ia
l u

n
ti

l a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
 



Nacogdoches City Council                                                                                                                        August 20, 2013 
Minutes – Regular Session  

 

 

 

 

 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING:  Consider the request for approval of a Specific Use Permit 
to construct a cell tower on Lot 9F, City Block 54 located at 3110 Appleby Sand 
Road.  This request has been submitted by Dave Kirk for AT&T Mobility.  
SUP2013-12. 

 

Larissa Philpot, city planner, stated the applicant was requesting a specific use permit to 
erect a cell tower at the corner on E. Austin and Appleby Sand Road on the property 
owned and occupied by the Disabled American Veterans.  She stated the tower would 
be disguised as a flag pole. 
 
Dave Kirk representing AT&T appeared and stated the tower would be installed within 
approximately 60 days and it was very important to the DAV that the tower be able to fly 
an American flag. 
 
Council member Norton moved to approve the request for a Specific Use Permit to 
construct a cell tower on Lot 9F, City Block 54 located at 3110 Appleby Sand Road by 
AT&T as presented.  The motion was seconded by Council member Boldon and 
unanimously passed. 

 
8. PUBLIC HEARING:  Consider the request for approval of a development plan 

for the reserve lot of Creek Bend Subdivision, City Block 68 located at 629 and 
630 Creek Bend Boulevard.  This request has been submitted by H. Elizabeth 
Young.  PD2013-01. 

 
Mayor Van Horn opened the public hearing. 

 
Vernon Young, developer, stated their first student housing project would be a unique 
development that would use the craftsman style to develop “cottages” with green space 
and landscaping between the buildings. 
 
Jordan Boyd, 4619 North Street, appeared and asked how this development would 
affect the other student housing on Creek Bend Boulevard.  He indicated he did not want 
the project to be unsuccessful and clientele go down and it affect other properties in the 
neighborhood. 
 
Mary Mockniak appeared and stated other apartment complexes in town that target 
more traditional housing were so saturated with students, because of the high rent for 
student housing, that it was making it difficult for non-students to find affordable housing 
in Nacogdoches. 
 
There being no one else present desiring to be heard, Mayor Van Horn closed he public 
hearing. 
 
Council member Norton moved to approve the development plan for the reserve lot of 
Creek Bend Subdivision, City Block 68 located at 629 and 630 Creek Bend Boulevard as 
requested by H. Elizabeth Young.  The motion was seconded by Council member Keller 
and unanimously passed.  (Ordinance 1642-8-13) 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING:  Hold public hearing on the proposed 2013-2014 City 

Budget. 
 

Mayor Van Horn opened the public hearing. 
 
City Manager Jeffers briefly gave highlights of the proposed budget. 
 
There being no one present desiring to be heard, Mayor Van Horn closed the public 
hearing. 
 
No action necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 



Nacogdoches City Council                                                                                                                        August 20, 2013 
Minutes – Regular Session  

 

 

 

 

 
10. Receive presentation of certified petition circulated by the Nacogdoches 

Restaurant and Bar Association to permit the legal sale of alcoholic beverages 
including mixed beverages in the City of Nacogdoches. 

 
Lila Fuller, city secretary presented a petition circulated by the Nacogdoches Restaurant 
and Bar Association was received on July 12, 2013 to permit the legal sale of alcoholic 
beverages including mixed beverages in the City of Nacogdoches.  She stated the 
petition had been verified and contained 2,042 valid signatures of voters registered in 
the City of Nacogdoches which exceeded the minimum required 1,868 signatures.  She 
further stated Election Code Sec. 501.032 required the City Council to order a local 
option election on the next uniform election date, which was November 5, 2013. 
 
No action necessary. 
 
11. Consider an Ordinance ordering a Special Local Option Liquor Election for 

November 5, 2013 for the purpose of submitting to the voters a proposition 
relating to legalizing the sale of all alcoholic beverages including mixed 
beverages within the City limits. 
 

Council member Brophy moved to adopt an Ordinance ordering a special local option 
liquor election for November 5, 2013 as presented.  The motion was seconded by 
Council member Keller and unanimously passed.  (Ordinance No.  1641-8-13) 
 
12. Receive presentation regarding the City’s Health Insurance Plan. 

 
Pam Curbow, finance director, introduced Jeff Summers who gave a brief update on the 
City’s health insurance plan.   
 
Mr. Summers stated the City was in good shape with their partially self-funded insurance 
plan and there would be no plan increases for employees this year. 
 
No action necessary. 
 
13. Consider award of bid for the construction of Block O, Cells 1 and 2 at the City 

of Nacogdoches Solid Waste Disposal Landfill. 
 

Steve Bartlett, city engineer, stated bids were opened on July 23, 2013 for the 
construction of two new cells at the landfill.  He stated Addicks Services, Inc. was found 
to be the lowest qualified bidder with a total bid of $2,499,759.08 and staff was 
recommending the contract be awarded to them.  Bartlett further stated the addition 
should accommodate disposal activities for another 6 years before there would be a 
need to construct additional cells.   
 
Council member Norton moved to approve the bid for construction of Block O, Cells 1 
and 2 at the City landfill as presented.  The motion was seconded by Council member 
Brophy and unanimously passed.  (Acct. 31.220.00) 
 
14. Adjourn. 

 
Mayor Van Horn adjourned meeting at 6:23 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
Mayor Roger Van Horn 

ATTEST:     City Council 
City of Nacogdoches 

________________________________ 
Lila Fuller, City Secretary 
 
 
 
Minutes approved September 3, 2013 



        

 

 
ITEM NO.  6 

 

 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: Approve Nacogdoches Convention and Visitors Bureau budget for Fiscal Year 

2013-14 and consider contract extension for tourism services  

 

MEETING DATE:  September 3, 2013 
 

DESCRIPTION:  The City of Nacogdoches contracts with the Nacogdoches Convention and Visitors 

Bureau to provide tourism and convention marketing services. The CVB is requesting 

that its annual budget be approved.  

 
COST: None 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?:   No 

 

FUNDING:  Acct. Name & No.  Original Budget   

Hotel Occupancy Tax  72.5%   72.5% 

   

 

SCHEDULE: October 1, 2013 to September 30, 2014. 

  

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION:   Approve annual budget and contract with the Nacogdoches Convention & Visitors 

Bureau for tourism and convention services. 

 

CITY CONTACT: Melissa Sanford, Nacogdoches CVB - 564-7351 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Contract 

 



1 DRAFT - 8/29/2013 7:37 AM 
 

AGREEEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF NACOGDOCHES AND 
NACOGDOCHES CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU 

 
 This agreement is entered into between the City of Nacogdoches, a Texas home-
rule Municipality (City), and the Nacogdoches Convention and Visitors Bureau, a Texas 
non-profit corporation (CVB) pursuant to Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code (as 
amended from time to time, the “Authorizing Legislation”).  In furtherance of the 
purposes of the Authorizing Legislation, and in consideration of the mutual covenants in 
this Agreement, the City and the CVB agree as follows: 
 

1.  Term 
 
This Agreement shall be effective and binding upon the parties beginning 
October 1, 2013, and shall remain in effect until September 30, 2014, subject to 
early termination as described below.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in 
this Agreement, any written notice or other written communication requested or 
permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be delivered, or sent by United 
States registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or by express carrier, to: 

 
Nacogdoches Convention and Visitors Bureau 
Executive Director 
200 East Main Street 
Nacogdoches, Texas 75961 
 

unless another address is substituted by notice delivered or sent as provided in 
this paragraph.  Unless specifically noted in this Agreement, any notice is 
deemed given when received. 
 

2. Statement of Work 
 
The marketing plan approved by the City shall state the work to be performed by 
the CVB with money paid the CVB by the City from the hotel occupancy tax 
(Work).  The Work shall be consistent with the CVB’s “Mission Statement” as 
follows:  to encourage, enhance and promote tourism-related business and 
special events in the Nacogdoches area; to further the promotion of tourism and 
publicity for the area; and to promote Nacogdoches as a tourist destination 
throughout the state, regionally, nationally and internationally.  Any material 
proposed changes to the approved marketing plan must be approved in writing 
by the City Manager or designee.  As used in this Agreement, the term “hotel tax 
revenue” means money paid by the City to the CVB from hotel occupancy tax 
levied and collected by the City in accordance with the Authorizing Legislation 
(Tax Collections).  The CVB agrees to perform the Work in accordance with 
Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code, all other applicable laws and regulations, 
this Agreement, and the applicable marketing plan and the Budget.  Contract 
performance will commence on October 1, 2013, (Commencement Date). 

 



2 DRAFT - 8/29/2013 7:37 AM 
 

3.  Budget, Accounting and Reports 
 

a.  As used in this Agreement, “fiscal year” means twelve-month period 
beginning October 1 and ending September 30.  The CVB shall adopt this 
Fiscal Year as its fiscal year. 
 
No later than June 15 of each year CVB shall provide City a proposed Budget 
and Marketing Plan for the Work, which shall reflect consultations between 
CVB and appropriate City staff concerning, with respect to the budget, 
projected available tax collections for the ensuing fiscal year, any amount 
available in the CVB’s reserve fund, and estimated costs of the Work. 
 
The City Council shall approve the budget and marketing plan.  The City and 
the CVB shall negotiate in good faith to reach an agreement on a marketing 
plan and budget for the fiscal year by September 1 of the preceding fiscal 
year.  Failure to reach an agreement shall authorize the City or the CVB to 
terminate this agreement on ninety (90) days notice. 
 

b. The Work shall be conducted, and all marketing plans and budgets shall 
contain the following requirements: 
 

(i) The marketing plans shall have separate work statements for, and 
the budget shall separately state and account for, (A) new “Class 
“A” Bookings” for the period commencing eighteen (18) months 
after the commitment date, (B) Convention Sales, (C) Music and 
Film Activities, (D) Marketing, Advertising Communications 
(including Heritage and Cultural), (E) Tourism, (F) Convention 
Services including Housing, (G) Visitor Services, (H) Sports 
Associations, and (I) other Work. 
 

(ii) The marketing plan and budgets shall be consistent with required 
allocation of uses of tax collections as set forth in the Authorizing 
Legislation and applicable City Ordinances, and shall identify those 
scheduled activities, programs or events that will directly enhance 
and promote tourism and the convention and hotel industry. 

 
(iii) The marketing plans shall be consistent with the policy that the 

primary role of the CVB is to market space in convention facilities, 
beyond eighteen (18) months from the first day of use, with the 
intent to maximize hotel occupancy tax and use of the convention 
facilities.  Marketing of this space within eighteen (18) months of 
the first day of use is the primary role of the CVB. 
 

As part of the Work, CVB shall provide, at a minimum, following services, 
activities and functions: 
 



3 DRAFT - 8/29/2013 7:37 AM 
 

(A) Market, solicit and advertise for conventions, tourism and 
other gatherings to maximize use of convention facilities, 
commercial lodging facilities and tourism facilities consistent 
with adopted marketing plan. 
 

(B) Provide registration, housing and information services for 
convention groups.  Act as a liaison for City in its 
relationship with music and film industries. 

 
(C) Develop public awareness of the desirability, benefits and           

importance of travel, music and film industries to the 
Nacogdoches area economy. 

 
(D) Market and distribute materials promoting Nacogdoches as 

a preferred destination city consistent with marketing plan. 
 

(E) Demonstrate advantages Nacogdoches area has to offer 
visitors from other parts of state, nation and world. 

 
(F) Perform all responsibilities of tourism and marketing. 
 
(G) Market and promote tourism and conventions among 

heritage and cultural markets in accordance with 
performance criteria set forth in each year’s Marketing Plan. 

 
(H) Perform additional duties as agreed upon by both parties 

consistent with aforementioned Mission Statement. 
 

(iv) The marketing plan shall include, but not be limited to, a description 
of the proposed program of action for the fiscal year.  It shall 
contain a specific numerical goal regarding Class “A” bookings for 
the convention facilities and quantifiable goals against which 
success may be measured.  In addition, annual budget document 
of CVB shall be presented in such a way as to associate direct 
costs where applicable, to the programs presented in the marketing 
plan.  The marketing plan shall contain convention marketing goals 
and convention marketing programs.  In addition, marketing plan 
shall include convention services, tourism, marketing and 
communication, housing, visitor services, sports association and 
music and film marketing goals and programs.  Upon approval of 
marketing plan and budget by City Council, CVB shall implement 
the plan and allocate funds within budgeted limits without further 
action on the part of the City. 

  
 The following criteria shall be used for goal measurement in 

individual departments: 



4 DRAFT - 8/29/2013 7:37 AM 
 

 
1.  Convention Sales 

a)  Class A Rooms – Groups utilizing the convention facilities. 
b) Class B Rooms – Groups of more than 50 rooms that do not 

utilize convention facilities. 
c) Class C Rooms – Groups of less than 50 rooms that do not 

utilize convention facilities. 
d) Total room nights. 
e) City wide conventions booked, (1,000 room nights peak is 

the current criteria.) 
f) Room nights generated through leads. 
g) Number of group leads sent. 
h) Other industry standards. 

  
2.  Sports Commission 

a) Room Nights – including Class A, Class B and Class C 
rooms. 

b) Event leads sent. 
c) Site visits. 
d) Media coverage/press communications. 
e) Other industry Standards 

 
3.  Tourism 

a) Product placed with tour operators. 
b) Destination training. 
c) Tourism partner leads. 
d) Online package development. 
e) Other industry standards 

 
4.  Marketing Communications 

a) Press releases/pitches. 
b) Media outlets contacted. 
c) Dollar impact of media. 
d) Unique website visitors. 
e) Visitors guide fulfillment. 
f) Other industry standards. 

 
5.  Convention Services 

a) Meetings serviced. 
b) Housing assigned. 
c) Registration hours. 
d) Other industry standards. 

  
6.  Music Marketing 

a) Booking assists. 
b) Industry contacts. 



5 DRAFT - 8/29/2013 7:37 AM 
 

c) Media contacts. 
d) Media events. 

 
7. Film Office 

a) Production inquires. 
b) Fulfillment location packages delivered. 
c) Project starts. 
d) Production days. 
e) Other industry standards. 

 
8. Visitor Services 

a) Visitor guide requests. 
b) Downtown visitors. 
c) Phone calls/email inquiries. 
d) Retail revenue. 
e) Other industry standards. 

 
9. Heritage Tourism 

a) Visitor inquiries. 
b) Heritage site development locally. 
c) Historic walking tour participants. 
d) Heritage site visitors. 
e) Heritage site marketing. 

 
10. Nature Tourism 

a) Visitor inquiries. 
b) Garden tours. 
c) Nature tourism promotion. 
d) Nature tourism development. 

 
All requests by CVB to City for funds, services, or other items of value shall be directed 
in writing for approval to the City Manager. 
 

(v) The CVB acknowledges City has adopted as a logo and motto 
“Nacogdoches, the oldest town in Texas” which may be used on 
CVB stationary, bulletins, displays, posters and media and press 
releases.  CVB is authorized to use any trade or service marks of 
City in connection with its performance of the Work.  Promotional 
material should contain “Nacogdoches, the oldest town in Texas” 
logo and CVB can use any additional logo adopted by its Board of 
Directors. 

 
c. It is intent of City and CVB that budgets for the Work reflect the amount of tax 

collections available for the Work and tax collections equal to 72.5% of hotel 
revenue that is taxable and collected under the Authorizing Legislation and 
Article IV, Hotel Occupancy Tax, Section 94-141 of the City Code, be 



6 DRAFT - 8/29/2013 7:37 AM 
 

available for the Work.  If during a fiscal year tax collections vary more than 
10% from the expectations on which the applicable budget is based, CVB 
shall send City Manager written notice of how CVB proposes to adjust its 
budget accordingly.  If City Manager agrees with proposed adjustments, CVB 
shall affect them as soon as practicable.  If City Manager does not agree with 
proposed adjustments, he or she shall propose other adjustments to the Work 
plan.  The City Council will resolve disputed adjustments to the Work plan, 
and CVB will effect as soon as practicable adjustments as resolved.  It is not 
intended that the scope of Work should be decreased if there are adequate 
funds available in the reserve fund to continue to pay for the Work; provided, 
however, once the available tax collections and any available money in such 
reserve funds have been spent, then no further money shall be available or 
paid by City. Limits of hotel occupancy fund allowed to be used for day to day 
operations, travel and other matters described in 351.101(e) and (f) shall be 
strictly observed. 

  
d. CVB shall maintain complete and accurate books and records of activities 

and finances, which City may audit at any time upon reasonable notice.  
Financial records shall be maintained on a regular basis in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, subject to any variations as are 
required by State law, or are agreed to in writing by City.  Specifically, CVB 
shall account separately for hotel tax revenue, and any other funds provided it 
by the City, and shall account separately for receipts and expenditures related 
to each of the following activities; (A) convention sales, (B) convention 
services housing, (C) tourism, (D) film and music, (E) marketing and 
communications, (F) visitor services, (G) administration, (H) advertising, (I) 
sports commission and (J) other work.  On request of City, CVB shall make  
records relating to handling and expenditure of hotel tax revenue and other 
City payments available to City or any other person designated by City. CVB 
shall also follow all provisions of City of Nacogdoches Code of Ordinances 
Administration of Funds, Section 94-206, et seq and Convention and Visitors 
Bureau Board, 94-231 et seq. 

 

e. CVB shall engage the same independent firm of certified public accountants 
utilized by City to audit its annual financial statements and shall deliver to City 
Manager a copy of audited annual financial statements, consisting of balance 
sheet, income statement, statement of cash flows, and notes to financial 
statements, no later than one hundred twenty (120) days after end of each 
fiscal year.  The engagement letter from the independent firm of certified 
public accountants shall contain a statement that CVB may request a copy of 
all audit work papers produced either by the client or the firm during annual 
audit of the financial statements.  Notes to audited annual financial 
statements shall contain a detailed breakdown of revenues by source and 
expenditures by category.  In addition to audited annual financial statements, 
upon request, CVB shall deliver copy of all audit work papers that underlie 
audited annual financial statements. 



7 DRAFT - 8/29/2013 7:37 AM 
 

 

f. Within thirty (30) days after the end of each quarter in the fiscal year, the CVB 
shall deliver to City Manager a (i) written report of expenditures relating to the 
Work with specific allocations and expenditure information as to hotel 
occupancy taxes, and (ii) unaudited financial statements for the quarter just 
ended, including at a minimum a balance sheet and income statement.  
Within forty five (45) days after the end of each quarter in the fiscal year, the 
CVB shall conduct a meeting (on at least three (3) days advance published 
notice) to present the financial report for the quarter just ended and obtain 
public input on it and the Work. 

 

g. CVB will provide City quarterly reports containing detailed information on 
performance of the Work, including performance reports listing all groups 
and/or events added to the City Manager or designee schedule in that period 
with accompanying information such as names, dates booked, estimated 
attendance and estimated room nights.  CVB shall provide City with any 
reports or documentation required by federal or state law; as such laws may 
be amended from time to time during the term of this Agreement. 

 

4.  Payments by the City 
 

(a) In addition to any particular limitations and conditions specifically stated in this 
Agreement, all obligations of the Agreement from proceeds of the hotel 
occupancy tax available to pay for the Work under this Agreement, and 
further subject to the actual collection of these tax proceeds.  This Agreement 
imposes no obligation upon City to levy and collect this tax. 
 

(b) City shall pay to CVB monthly in arrears from hotel tax revenue appropriated 
for this Agreement. Hotel tax revenue shall be spent solely to perform the 
Work allowable under Section 351 and fund compliance with this Agreement, 
including the preparation of reports and financial statements, and auditing of 
the latter. CVB acknowledges it has a fiduciary duty to City regarding hotel 
occupancy funds. 
 

(c) CVB is an independent entity, and the relationship between CVB and City is 
and shall remain that of independent contractors.  City is not and shall not be 
liable for any of CVB’s debts or obligations, including any operating deficit that 
may arise.  CVB shall not hold itself out as an agent of City, nor in any way 
purport to bind City with respect to any contract or other obligation.  CVB shall 
defend, indemnify and hold City harmless against any cost, claim, expense, 
liability, award or judgment (claim) arising in whole or in part out of, or alleged 
to arise in whole or part out of the operations or activities of CVB.  City may 
set-off and apply against any such claim (or against City’s cost of defending 
against such claim) any amount City owes CVB.  CVB shall carry insurance in 
the following types and amounts for the duration of this Agreement and, prior 
to the commencement date, shall furnish City Manager with Certificates of 



8 DRAFT - 8/29/2013 7:37 AM 
 

Insurance along with copies of policy declaration pages and all policy 
endorsements as evidence thereof; including insurance for special events, 
which may be outside the scope of general coverage: 

 
(i) Statutory workers’ compensation and employers’ liability coverage with 

minimum policy limits for employers’ liability of $100,000 bodily injury 
to each accident, $500,000 bodily injury by disease policy limit, and 
$100,000 bodily injury by disease each employee; 
 

(ii) Commercial general liability insurance with a minimum bodily injury 
and property damage per occurrence limit of $1,000,000.  The policy 
shall provide contractual liability coverage for liability assumed under 
this contract, products and completed operations coverage and 
independent contractors coverage; 

 
(iii) Business automobile liability insurance for all owned, non-owned and 

hired vehicles with a limit of $500,000 per occurrence for bodily injury 
and property damage liability; 

 
(iv) Directors and officers coverage with a minimum of not less than 

$1,000,000 per claim shall be in place for protection from claims 
arising out of negligent acts, errors or omissions for directors and 
officers while acting in their capacities as such; and 

 
(v) “All risk” property coverage (excluding flood and earthquake) at 100% 

replacement cost value for contents in the CVB’s care, custody or 
control.  The coverage will be primary and the City will be shown as 
loss payee on the policy. 

 
If coverage is written on a claims-made basis, the coverage, including 
renewals, shall have a retroactive date coincident with or prior to the date of 
this Agreement and the certificate of insurance shall state that coverage is 
claims-made and the retroactive date.  This coverage shall be continuous for 
not less than twenty-four (24) months following completion of service under 
this Agreement.  CVB shall provide all provisions of this Agreement 
concerning liability, duty and standard of care, together with indemnification or 
defense provisions herein, shall be underwritten by contractual coverage 
sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies. CVB shall not 
commence work under this Agreement until it has obtained all required 
insurance and the City Manager’s office has reviewed such insurance 
coverage.  Required insurance shall be written by company licensed to do 
business in State of Texas at the time the policy is issued.  In any event, 
Company must be rated by A.M. Best at B+VII or better and acceptable to 
City.  CVB shall produce an endorsement to each affected liability policy that:  
(A) names City as additional insured (except workers’ compensation), with the 
right of subrogation against City, waived and (B) obligates insurance 



9 DRAFT - 8/29/2013 7:37 AM 
 

company to notify City at following address, of any non-renewal, cancellation 
or material changes to the policy, at least thirty (30) calendar days before 
change or cancellation. 

 
    City of Nacogdoches 
    City Manager 
    202 East Pilar Street 
    Nacogdoches, Texas 75961 
 

CVB shall not cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance 
to lapse during the term of this Agreement or the twenty-four (24) month 
period following completion, in the case of a claims-made policy. City 
reserves right to review insurance requirements of this section during the 
effective period of this Agreement and to make reasonable adjustments to 
insurance coverage, their limits when deemed necessary, based upon 
changes in statutory law, court decisions or the claims history of the industry 
or financial condition of the insurance company, as well as that of CVB. City 
shall be entitled, upon request, and without expense to City, to receive copies 
of the requisite insurance policies and all endorsements thereto and may 
make any reasonable requests for deletion, revisions or modification of 
particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions.  (Except where 
policy provisions are established by law or regulation binding upon either of 
the parties hereto or the underwriter on any such policies.) 
 

(d) During each fiscal year, any portion of tax collections allocable to the Work 
and is not needed to pay CVB pursuant to the applicable budget shall accrue 
to ending balance of the reserve fund.  City and CVB shall review the amount 
of the reserve fund each year and the City shall determine the disposition of 
the money in the reserve fund in connection with City’s review of its budget 
and of CVB’s budget. 

 
5. Other Requirements 

 
(a) CVB Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer, if any, shall be bonded in a minimum 

amount of $100,000 each. 
 

(b) For the purposes of this Agreement and CVB Bylaws, City agrees the term 
“competitive strategy” shall mean:  selling Nacogdoches strengths against 
competitors’ weaknesses, developing and/or negotiating sponsorship and 
contribution agreements, competition for tourism special events, 
promotional/seasonal packaging and programs, and introduction of a new 
advertising campaign. 

 
(c) Except as provided in CVB Bylaws, articles of incorporation or in this 

Agreement, CVB may conduct its affairs and engage in such other activities 
as it deems appropriate, so long as such actions (I) are consistent with its 



10 DRAFT - 8/29/2013 7:37 AM 
 

purposes as stated in this Agreement and articles of incorporation, (ii) comply 
with applicable laws, and (iii) do not impair its ability to carry out its duties 
under this Agreement. 

 

(d) City may require CVB to perform an annual performance audit. City will 
determine the scope of work and CVB will pay for said performance audit. 

 
6. Early Termination 

 
Either party may terminate this agreement by written notice to the other party if 
such other party breaches any of its obligations hereunder and does not cure 
such breach within thirty (30) days after receiving written demand from the other 
party specifying the breach in question and demanding it be cured.  Such right to 
terminate this Agreement shall be without prejudice to the other legal and 
equitable rights of the parties. 
 

7. Cooperation 
 

Upon expiration or termination hereof for any reason, CVB shall cooperate with 
City to ensure a smooth transition and completion of the Work.  Without limiting 
the generality of the foregoing, CVB shall promptly, but not more than sixty (60) 
days following termination, turn over to City without charge all unspent Hotel Tax 
Revenue as well as all other City contributed revenue funds, including balance of 
reserve fund, and all property purchased with Hotel Tax Revenue or City 
provided funds and upon request shall assign to City all contracts, rights and 
claims relating to the Work.  Termination of this Agreement shall not impair the 
rights of City under state law, articles of incorporation or bylaws of CVB or under 
any other contract between City and CVB. 
 

8. Contract Administration 
 
This Agreement shall be administered by City through the City Manager or 
designee, and all communications from CVB to City concerning this Agreement 
and the Work shall be directed to the City Manager or designee, unless 
otherwise specified herein or in CVB Bylaws.  CVB shall deliver to the City 
Manager simultaneously a copy of any notice required by this Agreement or such 
bylaws to be delivered to another City official. 
 

9. Miscellaneous 
 

This Agreement may not be amended without written consent of the parties.  This 
Agreement is for the benefit of City and CVB only and no other party may seek to 
enforce it or assert any rights under it.  CVB may not assign this Agreement 
without the prior written consent of City.  Delay by a party in enforcing, or failure 
by such party to enforce, a right under this Agreement shall not be deemed a 
waiver of the same.  A waiver of party’s rights shall be effective only if in writing 



11 DRAFT - 8/29/2013 7:37 AM 
 

and shall be limited to the single event or occurrence specified.  This Agreement 
may be executed on one or more counterparts.  This Agreement, including its 
exhibits, attachments, and applicable City-approved Marketing Plans and 
Budgets, represents the entire agreement between the parties regarding the 
subject matter hereof, and there are no other representations, understandings, or 
agreements between the parties relative to such subject matter. 
 

10. Articles of Incorporation/Bylaws 
 

City shall have the right to approve any proposed changes to CVB Articles of 
Incorporation or Bylaws. 
 
 

In Witness Whereof, the City of Nacogdoches and the Nacogdoches Convention and 
Visitors Bureau have caused this Agreement to be executed and delivered by their duly 
authorized representatives as of the date specified below: 
 
 
CITY OF NACOGDOCHES, TEXAS 
 
Signature:  ______________________________ 
 
Print Name:  James P. Jeffers 
 
Title: City Manager 
 
Date:___________________________________ 
 
 
NACOGDOCHES CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU 
 
Signature:  ______________________________ 
 
Print Name:______________________________ 
 
Title: ___________________________________ 
 
Date:___________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 

ITEM NO.  7  

 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 
 

PROJECT: Consider award of a Professional Engineering Contract to KSA Engineers, Inc. 

for the design of Utility Relocation along South Street (US HWY 59 South) 

from Loop 224 to Old Lufkin Rd. intersection 

 

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2013  
 

DESCRIPTION: KSA Engineers, Inc. has been selected by committee from letter of interest 

proposals submitted in July 2013.  This contract will include fees for the 

preliminary design, final design, preparation of the bid documents,  bid 

administration, and construction phases of the project to include inspections and 

administration.  

 

COST:  $300,225.00  

 
BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?: No  

 

 

FUNDING FROM CURRENT BUDGET 

 
FUNDING: Acct. Name & No.    Adopted Budget Balance     Requested 

Capital Imp       $1,700,000  $1,700,000    $300,225  

 South Street Utility Relocation  
     
SCHEDULE:  Notice to proceed ASAP 

 

  

RECOMMENDED  

ACTION:   Staff recommends the selection of KSA Engineers, Inc. and approval of their 

contract for the US Highway 59 South Utility Relocation 
 

CITY CONTACT:   
 
ATTACHMENTS: Copies of the contract proposals are available in the Engineering Department. 

 



 
 

 

 

 

ITEM NO.  8 

 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 

 
PROJECT: Receive update from the Main Street Manager concerning the City of 

Nacogdoches Main Street Program. 

 

 

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2013 

 

DESCRIPTION:  Nacogdoches Main Street celebrated 15 years in 2013. Staff would like to 

present recent accomplishments, and current goals for the program 
 

 
CITY CONTACT: Sarah O’Brien, Main Street Manager 936-559-2573  

 Obriens@ci.nacogdoches.tx.us 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
 



 
 

ITEM NO.  9 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 

 
PROJECT: Consider adoption of City budget for fiscal year 2013 / 2014   

 

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2013  

 

DESCRIPTION:   The proposed 2013 / 2014 Budget highlights are: 

 

 Proposed tax rate - $0.5639/$100 valuation  

 General Fund proposed operating expenditures - $22,430,095  

 0.5% increase over FY 2013 Budget 

 Utility Fund proposed operating expenses - $15,116,258 

 0.5% decrease over FY 2013 Budget 

 Sanitation Fund proposed operating expenses - $4,962,981 

 0.75% increase from FY 2013 Budget 

 No adjustment in Utility/Sanitation rates 

 Utility rates being analyzed with recommendation at end of calendar year  

 No Cost of Living pay adjustments 

 Major Capital Expenditures: 

o General Fund 

 Streets (Carryover of $480,000)    $   855,000 

 Recreation/Library  Roof/Carpet/Repairs   $   185,000 

 Equipment       $   552,760 

o Utility Fund 

 Water Wells (new & rehab)     $2,350,000 

 Utility Relocations      $2,930,000 

 Water Distribution System Improvements   $3,705,000 

 Wastewater System Improvements    $2,625,000 

 24” Banita Creek Sewer Line Replacement   $2,000,000 

 Equipment       $   631,000 

o Sanitation Fund 

 Design& Construction Block O     $3,000,000 

 CNG Fueling Facility      $   500,000 

 Landfill Expansion Property     $   250,000 

 Landfill Methane Capture System    $     75,000 

 Equipment       $   620,000 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION:   Adoption of ordinance on FY 2013-2014 Budget 

 
CITY CONTACT: Pamela R Curbow, Director of Finance – 559-2526 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  2013 / 2014 Proposed Budget 











































































 
 

 

 

 

ITEM NO.  10 

 

CITY OF NACOGDOCHES 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET: 

 
PROJECT: Consider Ordinance ratifying the 2014 tax rate.  

 

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2013  

 

DESCRIPTION: Ratify the 2013 / 2014 tax rate.  

 

The tax rate is .5639 cents per $100 valuation: 

 

 .480494 cents per $100 valuation for Operation & Maintenance 

 .083406 cents per $100 valuation for Debt 

 

COST:   None    

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUIRED?:  No   

 

FUNDING: Acct. Name & No.  Original Budget  Requested 

      

SCHEDULE:   

  

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION:   Adoption of ordinance ratifying the 2014 tax rate 

 
CITY CONTACT: Pamela R Curbow, Director of Finance – 559-2526 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Ordinance 
 

 



  1644-8-13 

 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING AND SETTING THE TAX RATE FOR 2014 
 
 
 
 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Nacogdoches, Texas that the 
tax rate for 2014 for the City of Nacogdoches be set at $.5639 per $100.00 valuation, 
with the following distribution: 
 

Operation and Maintenance    $        .480494 
 

I & S Debt Service               .083406 
 

$           .5639 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that any requirement that this Ordinance be read 
at more than one reading be hereby suspended and that this Ordinance shall become 
effective immediately upon its passage, approval and publication. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 3rd day of September 2013. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Roger Van Horn, Mayor 
City of Nacogdoches 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Lila Fuller, City Secretary 
 
Approved as to form:  ______________________________ 

Rob Atherton, City Attorney 


